
 
 

Environment and Community 
Engagement Scrutiny Commission 

 
Monday 20 February 2023 

7.00 pm 
160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH 

 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Margy Newens (Chair) 
Councillor Graham Neale (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Ketzia Harper 
Councillor Emily Hickson 
Councillor Sarah King 
Councillor Reginald Popoola 
Councillor David Watson 
Shalaka Laxman 
Lydia Marsden 
 

Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Rachel Bentley 
Councillor Gavin Edwards 
Councillor Natasha Ennin 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Adam Hood 
Councillor Kimberly McIntosh 
 

 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports 
on this agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to 
look after your children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form 
at the meeting. 

Access The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact Julie Timbrell on 020 7525 0514  or email: julie.timbrell@southwar.gov.uk   
 

 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Althea Loderick 
Chief Executive 
Date: 12 February 2023  
 

 

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


 
 



 
 

Environment and Community Engagement 
Scrutiny Commission 

 

Monday 20 February 2023 
7.00 pm 

160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an 
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on  
12 January 2023, to follow. 
 

 

5. WE WALWORTH 
 

1 - 5 

 Rebecca Towers, Programme Director, will attend with Richard 
Galpin, Pembroke House.  
 
A briefing is enclosed.  
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

6. CLIMATE EMERGENCY CITIZENS JURY 
 

 

 Chris Page, Climate Change and Sustainability Director, will attend 
and present on the Citizens Jury, with a focus on the community 
engagement process. A briefing is to follow.  
 

 

7. RESIDENT PARTICIPATION FRAMEWORK 
 

6 - 40 

 An officer presentation is attached addressing three main areas: 
 
•        Update on implementation of the Resident Participation 
Framework,  
 
•         Impact of the Regulatory Code on participation and the 
framework, 
 
•         What good practice in resident participation looks like. 
 
The February 2020 Cabinet report on the Southwark Resident 
Participation Framework is enclosed as background.  
 
Cris Claridge, Tenants Council, will attend and be accompanied by  
Althea Smith, joint Chair of Tenants Forum, Chris Meregini, SGTO 
Chair and Dario Blake, SGTO Vice Chair. 
 
 
 

 

8. REVIEW: FINANCING AND RESOURCING THE CLIMATE 
EMERGENCY PLAN - OFFICER BRIEFING 

 

41 - 43 

 A briefing on retrofit and low carbon heating funding and retrofit 
projects for council homes is enclosed. Further briefings are to 
follow. 
 

 

9. INTERVIEW: CABINET MEMBER CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND 
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

 

44 - 45 

 The commission will interview Councillor James McAsh, who is 
providing maternity cover for Cllr Helen Dennis, Cabinet Member for 
Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development, whose portfolio 
is enclosed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

10. WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

  
 

 

 
Date:  12 February 2023  
 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information: 
 
  “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution.” 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 



We Walworth
A model for thriving neighbourhoods
We Walworth is a new project to engage everyone in Walworth to work
together to make the neighbourhood a better place to live.

The context

The pandemic showed us that no single organisation, council or service can tackle
the challenges our neighbourhood faces alone. It will take the whole
neighbourhood bringing its collective tools, skills and ideas to really make a
di�erence.

During lockdown we saw what was possible: a new way of working together that
could transform our neighbourhood. A collective vision was forming of a future
where no one worried about where the next meal is coming from, and where
everyone was able to bring their contribution to support a stronger and more
resilient neighbourhood.

We know that if we want to build a society where no one struggles for food and
everyone can fulfil their potential, we’re going to have to think bigger and
di�erently about how to tackle our challenges together. We need to surface new
leaders and ideas to tackle inequalities.

We think that by bringing together a team to work on local challenges, we can find
new ways of solving problems together. So, we’ve built a new kind of project with a
whole range of people who have something to contribute.

About the work

We Walworth is a new project to engage everyone in Walworth around local issues,
and find out how we can work better together. It uses mass engagement to
surface new leaders and their ideas through cross-sector teams, who take the
ideas forward and build new visions for tackling issues together. It’s a partnership
of organisations, groups and individuals, led and coordinated by Pembroke House
and Southwark Council.

By bringing people from both sides of the argument together, by working together
as a group of residents, practitioners and professionals, including representatives
of local and national government - we begin conversations to surface local issues
that could unite the neighbourhood. In  the first six months, as we developed our
methodology, we used the principles of mass engagement to:

- Host 6 engagement events with over 120 Walworth residents, government
sta� and local businesses in attendance

- Have conversations about food and inequality with 700 local people

1
Agenda Item 5

https://coda.io/@we-walworth/project


- Develop and present a new vision for outdoor eating in Walworth, shaped
entirely by this engagement, to residents at the local Ward Forum and
council decision-makers

- Surface our second challenge around food economies and East Street
Market

Challenge #1

The first challenge that surfaced from our mass engagement was the BBQs in
Burgess Park. The BBQ area was popular before Covid, but is now fenced o� after
complaints about noise, pollution and safety concerns. Local people feared that
the decision had already been made to keep the area closed for good. We brought
people together around this issue to explore the tensions and complexities of the
issue and unite around a new vision for outdoor eating in Walworth.

Challenge #2

Emerging now, our second challenge has surfaced real local passion and a�ection
for East St Market. The market fulfils an important social function, and is part of
the historic identity of the area. It provides a source of a�ordable food for some.
However many people remember the market as previously much more vibrant,
with a much wider o�er. They sense that the market is in decline, with a
diminishing and narrow o�er that is not serving the community well, and is
increasingly unviable for the traders too. We are currently bringing our second
cohort together to take action to breathe new life in the market.

We’re now looking ahead to the expansion of the pilot project in Walworth, which
would lay the foundation for a wider model for this work that could be deployed in
various neighbourhoods across London.

Our approach

There are three building blocks to the whole-neighbourhood approach we’re taking
in this work:

1. A coalition of willing partners, including local and central government, who
can unlock capacity and resource to commit to the project, challenge
existing institutional systems and embed the learning from the work within
their teams

2. The use of mass engagement methods to talk to 80% of our neighbourhood
about a given issue, which helps us see people and issues in a new light,
surface new actors and build momentum and energy to achieve things that
previously no one thought possible

3. A shared creative process that representatives from the neighbourhood,
local organisations, the council and central government undertake to engage
their neighbours, identify local priorities and develop new visions for
addressing neighbourhood challenges

In order to surface pressing issues within the neighbourhood and then come
together to address them, we’ve developed the model below.

2



MASS ENGAGEMENT (3 months)

The work starts by setting a goal to talk to 80% of the neighbourhood about a
given issue. This goal isn’t about achieving community consensus, it’s not a priority
setting exercise - elected representatives for the neighbourhood already hold the
authority to make decisions and they are accountable at election. This goal serves
to animate the whole community and the institutions which give that community
structure. It’s important that it’s something that’s di�cult to achieve - a target
which keeps breaking us out of our comfort zone.

We work towards reaching 80% of our neighbourhood through various methods:

Neighbourhood Welcome events (x2) that bring up to 50 residents, local
government and central government sta� together to:

- Share food
- Get trained on an engagement method (e.g. street canvassing)
- Practise what they’ve learned by going out into the community to have

conversations with local members of the public about the topic at hand
- Come back together to reflect on what they heard

Activation Sessions (x2) that further engage Neighbourhood Welcome attendees
who are interested in getting more involved. This is a smaller group session that
includes training on another engagement method (e.g. phone banking) and the
chance to practise this by following up with the members of the public who were
engaged during the Neighbourhood Welcome.

One-to-ones with Activation Session attendees to gauge their interest in joining
the next more intensive phase of the programme.

WORKING GROUP CHALLENGE (3 months)

The Working Group is made up of 3 residents, representatives from 3 local
organisations, 3 Council sta� and 3 central government sta� who have engaged in
one or more of the engagement events in the Mass Engagement phase. They work
together as a team on an issue that has surfaced during the first phase through
the below programme, in order to create a new vision to solve a problem facing
the neighbourhood.

Week 1 Engagement challenge 1
Mapping your community connections and reaching out to your
networks

Week 2 Engagement challenge 2
Meeting people working on the front line of the issue

Week 3 Creation session A
Surfacing challenges, ideas, opportunities & resources

Week 4 Engagement challenge 3
Engaging your sceptics in the neighbourhood

Week 5 Creation session B

3



Developing visions and practising pitches

Week 6 Engagement challenge 4
Pitching new visions to local groups and institutions

Week 7 Creation session C
Finalising presentation of the visions and practising pitches

Week 8 Engagement challenge 5:
Facilitating a local Ward Forum and presenting to decision-makers

IMPLEMENTATION & STEWARDSHIP (6 months)

The final phase is all about testing out di�erent elements of the vision through
implementation in the neighbourhood, in collaboration with local decision-makers.
A smaller, o�shoot working group (of 1-2 residents, representatives from local
organisations, Council sta� and central government sta�) meets every other week
for six months to help the council understand how the vision could be
implemented and provide consistent feedback on their delivery plan.

This phase solidifies the social capital that has been generated through the project
to date and provides a chance for the cohort to build relationships with the next
Working Group. It also provides space for local government and central
government representatives to build out more e�ective ways of working together
in local contexts.

The details of this phase are variable and are worked out by each team depending
on their vision.

Project outcomes

In the short-term:

- Equitable cross-sector teams are built and work successfully together
- Two local challenge ideas are surfaced and developed with their own set of

outcomes
- A replicable model that can be used for local decision-making on any issue

in any area is created and refined
- Council and central government sta� spend more time in the local

neighbourhoods they serve
- New neighbourhood capacity is created through new skills, connections,

relationships and partnerships
- Increased social capital for participating residents and public sector sta�
- Learning from the project is shared by participating public sector sta�

within their teams

Over time:

- Local people and organisations gain a greater sense of agency and ability to
a�ect change in their local area

- The public sector gains new skills to better connect with - and therefore
serve - communities

4



- Learning from the project is embedded within organisational structures,
bringing about wider cultural change within participating institutions

5



Resident Participation 
Framework

Presentation to Environment and Community Engagement 
Scrutiny Commission
February 20th, 2023

6
A

genda Item
 7



Update on implementation – key issues

• Pandemic impacts – lockdowns, social distancing, fear
• Organisational changes (x2)
• Leadership of Business Unit (3 managers in 2 years, different 

approaches and operational priorities)
• Legacy of 30-year RP structure - To change? Or not to change?
• Institutional ‘amnesia’ a consequence of above
• Social Housing Regulation Bill – Impacts on RP policies and practices, 

and Council Plan
• HQN mock inspection report…?

7



Impacts of Regulation on RP policy & practice

•Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Standard 
•1 of 4 Consumer Standards for tenants:

• Centrality of complaints to RP (inc. co-designed complaints policy)
• Resident-led scrutiny
• ‘Meaningful’ engagement – capturing, and reporting, on impacts
• Diversity of engagement options – one size doesn’t fit all (e.g. 

TRAs)

8



Impacts of Regulation on RP policy & practice

• Co-created menu of engagement options
• Resident involvement in landlord communications to residents
• Recognition and reimbursement for time taken by residents
• Creative and inclusive resident engagement practices – ‘capturing the 

informal’

9



RP - What does ‘good’ look like?

• Resident voice(s) at the heart of policy and practice….
• Key principles clarified – ‘voice’, ‘listening’, ‘hearing’, ‘dialogue’, ‘narrative’ etc.
• Capturing the informal – immersive, reactive but responsive resident 

participation practices
• In-depth, qualitative research and analysis (interviews, case studies etc.)
• Surface and deep analysis of resident voice – explicit and implicit messages (c.f. 

estate cleaning focus group), emerging themes
• Creative, educational…. and fun! (Podcasts, storytelling, peer-learning, 

photography projects etc.)
• Developed in partnership with residents

10



RP - What does ‘good’ look like?

• RP practices tailored to meet needs of residents with protected characteristics, in 
dialogue with those residents (e.g. black and minority ethnic housing forum; TRA 
diversity exercise)
• Menu of involvement options – one-off (e.g. survey form, task and finish group) 

versus ongoing/intensive (e.g. Citizens Jury, Resident Scrutiny Panel)
• Learning for active citizenship: reflection on experience; turning experience into 

learning; sharing learning with peers; developing voice and critical consciousness 
as tenants (‘critical pedagogy’); challenging stigmatising narratives
• Residents at the centre of resident participation, council as enabler
• Quality, not quantity

11



Conclusions

• A lot of work to do!
• Work to be undertaken in partnership with residents, but…
• Needs top-down leadership (corporate leadership)
• Some (relatively) quick wins…
• Member induction into RP – deepening knowledge and understanding, 

developing a corporate vision for RP
• Community Leadership course for resident activists…?

THANK YOU FOR LISTENING. ANY QUESTIONS?

12



Item No. 
8.

Classification:
Open

Date:
4 February 2020

Meeting Name:
Cabinet

Report title: Southwark Resident Participation Framework 

Ward(s) or groups affected: All

Cabinet Member: Councillor Kieron Williams, Housing Management and 
Modernisation

FOREWORD – COUNCILLOR KIERON WILLIAMS, CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING 
MANAGEMENT AND MODERNISATION 

This report sets out wide ranging actions to strengthen the way the council works with the 
people who live in our council homes.  These changes will open up our approach to resident 
participation so everyone who lives in a council home can get involved. They will also shift 
the resources we put into resident participation back to the grassroots, giving our residents 
more support and funding to do the things they want to do to improve their local estates and 
communities. 

These changes are part of our commitment to make all of our homes and estates great 
places to live. Achieving that aim is a joint endeavour between the council and the people 
who live in our homes. Only by working together can we ensure our housing services work 
for our residents, our homes are in good condition, our estates are safe, clean and cared for, 
and our local communities are supported to prosper and thrive. That’s why we want every 
resident to feel they can get involved. 

Tenants and residents associations (TRAs) will continue to be at the heart of our approach. 
Southwark has a long and proud history of residents working together through TRAs to 
improve the homes and lives of the people on their estate. We will work with our TRAs to 
substantially improve the support they receive, making it easier for them to get funding and 
providing them with better training, information and officer support, as well as more support 
to set up new TRAs where one does not exist.  Where it is right for residents we will also 
continue to support them to manage their own estate through a Tenant Management 
Organisation. 

We will also open up our resident participation structures. Everyone who lives in a council 
home will now be able to get involved in their Local Housing Forum and a much wider range 
of people will be able to participate in our resident working groups that look in-depth at key 
housing issues. We will launch a new online residents panel so that hundreds more of our 
residents can actively help to shape our housing services as well as retaining Southwark 
wide elected tenant and homeowner forums.  We will give residents the right to put issues on 
the work plan of the council's housing scrutiny commission, with residents represented on 
the commission too.  And we will launch a £900,000 Resident Participation Fund with half 
the money going direct to grassroots activity and the rest funding independent support and 
advice services, free training and wider support for our residents.  

In making these changes our aim is to grow the number and diversity of our residents who 
are actively involved in shaping the council’s housing services and improving their estates 
and community and to enable them to be more effective at both. We want to be sure these 
changes achieve that aim so we will undertake a full evaluation after the first year to make 
sure we have got it right and to identify improvements we can make.  

13



RECOMMENDATIONS

That cabinet notes:

1. The feedback from the Resident Involvement Review consultation which ran between 
July to October 2019 and had over 1,120 responses and can be found in Appendix 1. 

That cabinet agrees:

2. The actions to reaffirm and further strengthen the council’s support for Tenants and 
Residents Associations (TRAs), including to work with TRAs to agree a joint plan to 
update and enhance the support available to them, as set out in paragraph 40. 

3. To establish a new Residents Participation Fund (RPF) with an annual budget of 
£900,000 that directs more resources to grassroots resident involvement activities  that 
benefit people living in council homes, as set out in paragraph 87, 88 and 89.

4. The updated Resident Participation Framework, including Local Housing Forums, a 
new digital Residents Panel, Southwark wide Tenants and Homeowners Forums, and 
a programme of Resident Working Groups to look in depth at issues of most interest to 
residents, as set out in paragraphs 50 and 58.

5. The actions to give council tenants and homeowners a central role on the council’s 
housing scrutiny commission as a further way to hold the council’s housing services to 
account, as set out in paragraphs 64 and 65.  

6. The actions to reaffirm and further strengthen the council’s support for tenant 
management, as set out in paragraph 76.

7. To extend the existing grants for independent tenant and homeowner support and 
advice services provided by Southwark Group of Tenants Organisations and the 
Citizens Advice Bureau for a further six months to the 31 September 2020 to allow 
time for the procurement of contracts for these services.

8. The implementation timeline for the above changes, as set out in Appendix 2. 

9. That a review of the new Resident Participation Framework be undertaken after the 
first year in order to assess its effectiveness and whether any adjustments are needed, 
with a report back to cabinet by September 2021.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

10. Southwark Council is the largest local authority landlord in London with over 53,000 
council rented, leasehold and freehold homes across the borough. The council’s 
relationship with our tenants and homeowners is especially important to the council.  It 
is also governed by statute, requiring the council to consult our tenants and 
homeowners on matters of housing management. Continuing to improve the way the 
council’s do this is a key commitment in the council’s 2018-22 Council Plan which sets 
out the council’s pledge to work with tenants, residents and homeowner to find new 
ways to engage so that more people can have their say. 

11. In taking forward this commitment the council is building on a long tradition of resident 
participation in Southwark. Our borough has a long established tenants’ movement, 
with the majority of council homes covered by a Tenants and Residents Association 

14



(TRA) as well as over 4,600 homes that are directly managed by tenants and residents 
through Tenant Management Organisations (TMOs). The council also has a long 
standing tenant and homeowner consultation structure, including Area Housing Forum 
and Tenants and Homeowners Councils. Southwark also has a long standing 
independent tenants’ federation, Southwark Group of Tenants Organisations (SGTO), 
who the council funds to support tenants and residents groups within the borough, 
including through the provision of training, information and advice. The proposals set 
out in this report seek to update and strengthen these arrangements. 

The need to update the council’s approach to resident participation    

12. The council’s current approach to resident participation has been in place for many 
years. In that time there have been considerable changes in both the way housing 
services are delivered and the way that residents tell the council they want to be 
involved. Best practice advice from the Local Government Association and others 
recommends that councils review their resident participation arrangements regularly to 
ensure they work well. This had not happened in Southwark for a number of years so it 
is right that the council reviews and updates them. This is even more the case as in 
recent years residents involved in the current structures have raised concerns with the 
council that the current approach is not working as well as it needs to. In particular this 
review has sought to identify how the council can address a number of key issues:     

a) Involving more people: Whilst a substantial number of people are involved in the 
current structures, including many who have years of experience of working to 
improve council homes and estates, the total number of people actively involved 
remains small in comparison to the over 100,000 people who live in a Southwark 
council home. Some groups of people are particularly underrepresented including 
young people and families with children. A further important concern is that the 
current resident consultation structure excludes some residents from direct 
representation as those living in the near 40% of council homes which are not 
covered by a TRA, are not able to elect representatives to Area Housing Forums 
and therefore in turn are not represented at Tenants Councils. 

b) Providing more ways to get involved: Increasingly people want to get involved 
in all aspects of life in a range of different ways. The council’s existing 
representative structures work well for some but not all of our residents.  It is 
therefore important that we look at how we can compliment this type of 
engagement with more open opportunities to get involved so that everyone who 
wants to has a chance to have a say. That includes using online and digital 
channels that appeal to many residents, including many younger people and those 
not able to attend regular meetings. 

c) Increasing support for the grass roots: Most residents who are involved in 
improving our council housing services and life on our estates do so through local 
activity with fellow residents on their estate or street, including through their 
Tenants and Resident Association. This review has therefore looked at how we 
can free up more funding and officer time to support this grassroots activity.       

d) Reflecting changes to council services:  The way the council’s housing services 
are delivered has also changed substantially since the current resident 
involvement structures where put in place. At that time the council had local 
housing offices that operated with a significant degree of autonomy. This is no 
longer the case, with housing services now working to borough wide standards and 
with the current twelve Area Housing Forums no longer mapping on to the way the 
council manages its homes. This review has therefore also looked at how the 

15



structures can be best aligned with the way the council now works so residents 
have direct access to senior managers and quality information on how services are 
performing.        

Wider context to the review 

13. In April 2019 the council agreed a new approach to all aspect of community 
engagement, setting out our intention to strengthen the way we work with and engage 
the public across all of our work. This review is therefore also an important opportunity 
to ensure the objectives and principles set out in that approach are equally applied to 
resident participation. The council’s three community engagement objectives are:

 Create and nurture relationships with people and community organisations and build 
better connectivity between the council, and voluntary and community organisations 
and people in Southwark and each other. 

 Understand people’s experiences of services they use and the homes and 
neighbourhoods they live in, work in, run a business in, visit and move through and 
to better employ this local intelligence and local expertise to improve people’s 
wellbeing, the quality of our places and the quality of our services. 

 Enable good governance and fair and informed decision making, through building 
confident, skilled, active and influential communities and a culture of getting 
involved.

14. In reviewing the resident involvement structure, the council has also been guided by 
the need to comply with Social Housing Regulator’s Tenant Involvement and 
Empowerment Standard, including the requirement  to ‘consult tenants at least once 
every three years on the best way of involving tenants in the governance and scrutiny 
of the organisation’s housing management service’.  

15. The council also seeks to be a model of best practice ensuring that the resident 
participation proposals outlined in this report meet TPAS’s National Tenant 
Engagement Standards. The proposals have in addition been informed by the Local 
Government Association’s report on Engaging and Empowering Tenants in Council 
Owned Housing (2019) which sets out how good engagement reaches everyone, not 
just those already involved, and that a variety of methods used are good to promote 
accessibility.

16. This review of resident involvement and the final proposals set out in this report seek 
to respond to all of the above issues and others to ensure Southwark has an approach 
that works for everyone who lives in one of our council homes.     

Consultation process

17. The review was initiated in 2016 following a report from the housing and community 
safety scrutiny committee on resident involvement. That report found that while there 
were many positive elements, there was also considerable dissatisfaction on all sides 
with aspects of the current arrangements and a strong desire for change.

18. In February 2017, the housing and community safety scrutiny committee 
commissioned Kaizen Partnership and Social Engine to conduct an independent, in-
depth study of how the council engages with tenants and homeowners as a housing 
provider and identify areas for improvement.

16



19. The research identified a number of fundamental challenges including the limited 
coverage of TRAs, how to engage with residents across the borough’s diverse 
population, the lack of diversity among members of Area Housing Forums, Tenants 
and Homeowner councils, low awareness of residents of the resources available, a 
preference for funding to be directed towards estate-based/local community projects 
and that Tenants Council and Homeowners Council meetings were not effectively  
contributing to strategic decision making about housing services. 

20. The Kaizen/Social Engine report demonstrated that there was an urgent need for a 
comprehensive review of the housing engagement structures to ensure that council 
tenants and homeowners can access the structure, to empower TRAs, to allow for 
efficient and accountable use of residents funds and assets (Tenants Fund, 
Homeowners Fund, TRA halls) and to ensure that there is effective resident scrutiny of 
housing management services.

21. In June 2018 the Kaizen/Social Engine review was presented to Cabinet which agreed 
to set up an independently chaired co-design panel of residents (Panel) to review the 
housing engagement and involvement structures and make recommendations on 
changes where these were needed. 

22. The Panel was set up in September 2018. It was independently chaired with a majority 
of residents, drawn from a different housing tenures, geography and demographics. 
The Panel received evidence in the form of written submissions from existing bodies, 
residents involved in current structures officers of the council, as well as papers 
prepared by the independent chair. The Panel also spoke with resident representatives 
and council managers. Its findings were published in January 2019 and were subject 
to a four week public consultation. 

23. The full co-design Panel report, salient points from that consultation and 
recommendations for the new resident involvement framework were presented to 
Cabinet in June 2019. Cabinet then agreed a final round of consultation on the 
proposals.

24. That most recent round of consultation ran between 10 July and 10 October 2019. The 
purpose of this final round of consultation was to hear the views of a full range of 
people who live in council’s homes, as well as wider interested people and 
organisations, on the council’s proposed changes to resident participation. It produced 
a large response, with a total of 1,120 submissions including: over 170 people spoken 
to face to face, 669 responses to the questionnaire (over 132 of those submitted on 
paper and the rest online), 20 written responses received from various bodies and 260 
postcards from a campaign by the Southwark Group of Tenants Organisations 
(SGTO).

25. Of the survey responses received 54% were council tenants, 21% council 
homeowners living in the property, 3% non-resident council homeowners, 3% private 
renters living in a council block, 3% temporary accommodation tenants living in a 
council property, 11% said they were none of these and 4% did not say.   

26. The proposals were also considered through the council’s current formal resident 
consultation structures i.e. Area Housing Forums, Tenant Council, Homeowner 
Council and Southwark TMO Committee.

27. The consultation was promoted in many ways, including publicity distributed in 
libraries, housing estates, via Tenants and Residents Associations (TRAs), on Social 

17



Media, face to face at TRA summer events, etc. Officers worked with partners to reach 
the seldom-heard such as Southwark Disablement Association, Sheltered Housing 
Units, Citizens Advice Bureau, Young Advisors, etc.

28. The survey responses include a wide spread of people, with a good cross section of 
tenants and homeowners, women and men, ethnicities, people with and without 
disabilities and people of different sexual orientations. Whilst the majority of people 
who responded where aged 25-65 a significant number of older people also responded 
and targeted consultation was also undertaken with young people under 25. Taking 
the size of the response together with the representativeness of those responding this 
gives a very high degree of confidence that the results reflect what most people would 
be likely to say.

29. Full details on the methodology for this final round of consultation can be found in 
Appendix 1. This report presents the feedback from this final consultation and the final 
proposals for resident participation which have been developed to take into account all 
the feedback the council has received over the last three years.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

Consultation Findings

30. A wide range of responses were received on the detailed recommendations as 
summarised in Appendix 1. Overall there were a number of common themes across 
these responses, notably: 

i. Residents want structures that both enable them to shape housing services and 
help them to take action to build inclusive, strong local communities on their own 
estates. 

ii. More people want to get involved both in shaping housing services and 
improving their estates and local community than are at present, with 65% of 
respondents to the questionnaire saying they would like to be more involved.

iii. Residents want a range of ways to participate that suit their different needs. For 
example, a majority of respondents would like to see more opportunities for 
digital and online participation, while at the same time many residents highlighted 
the need to also retain traditional face to face methods, including the importance 
of elected tenant and resident representation. 

iv. There is very strong backing for continuing to improve support for Tenants and 
Residents Associations (TRAs) with many positive comments on the work TRAs 
do for their communities, while at the same time highlighting the need for TRAs 
to be inclusive and accountable in how they operate and spend funds. Whilst 
smaller in number, there was also a significant number of responses highlight the 
value and importance of Tenant Management Organisations.

v. There was also strong support for providing more opportunities for residents who 
live in homes not covered by a TRA to get involved and to be able to access 
resident participation grant funding for their estate or area. 

vi. Many of the responses also highlighted the importance of resident lead 
participation structures, through which tenants and homeowners can raise issues 
of concern to them, lead the scrutiny of housing services and shape decisions on 
the best ways to use resident participation funding. 

18



vii. A further common theme is the importance of having forums that have sufficient 
time and space to consider the many different details of housing and estate 
management. In particular a large number of respondents felt that the proposal 
to make Ward Forums the place to discuss housing issues at a local level will not 
work in practice as the wider focus of Ward Forums on all aspects of life in each 
area would not give sufficient time to address the detail of housing management.  

viii. Many of the responses also emphasised the vital importance of high quality 
support to ensure resident participation is meaningful and effective and asked for 
clarity from the council on how that support will be provided.        

31. Further information from the consultation in relation to each of the proposals is 
presented further down this report. A full summary of responses can also be found in 
Appendix 1.

Final Proposals 

32. The following paragraphs set out the proposals consulted on, a summary of the 
consultation feedback and the final recommendations for cabinet to approval with a 
rationale. These final recommendations take into account all feedback received across 
all stages of the consultation over the last two years.

33. The proposals seek to strengthen resident participation in ways that:

 Respond to feedback received through the consultation
 Enable people who live in council homes to achieve improvements in our 

housing services, homes, estates and the lives of our residents
 Increase the number and diversity of residents actively involved 
 Continue to fulfil the council’s statutory duties to consult our tenants and 

residents   

34. They are designed to:

 Ensure everyone living in a council home has the opportunity to participate, with 
more choice of how and when they can get involved

 Direct more resources and support to the grass roots, so tenants and residents 
have the support they need to improve their local estates and communities 

 Use digital engagement as an additional way to get more people involved 
 Ensure residents living in council homes not covered by a TRA can participate, 

as well as working with tenants and residents to increase the coverage of TRAs 
 Continue to include elected representation of tenants and homeowners 
 Continue to include local housing forums (keeping them separate from the wider 

Ward Forums)
 Continue to include separate Southwark wide forums for tenants and for 

homeowners, alongside a joint forum to consider shared issues 
 Ensure residents continue to set the agendas of housing forums so they focus on 

the issues that mater to them, with forums chaired by residents and with annual 
work plans set by residents  

 Ensure decisions on funding for resident participation are based on 
recommendations from tenants and residents 

 Strengthen the link between tenants & residents and the council’s Housing 
Scrutiny Commission 

19



 Continue to provide independent support and advice for council tenants and 
homeowners, including from Southwark’s independent tenants federation, 
Southwark Group of Tenants Organisations (SGTO).

35. The main elements of the revised resident participation framework are set out in the 
diagram below and described in more detail in the following sections.  

Tenants and Residents Associations (TRAs)

Proposals consulted on

36. The recommendation in relation to TRAs was that they remain fundamental to the 
structure providing both scrutiny and community development functions for tenants 
and homeowners. In addition the council proposed that it would seek to establish and 
re-establish TRAs in those areas where none currently exist and will:

 Identify non-TRA areas and work proactively with tenants and residents in those 
areas to support them in establishing TRAs where they wish to do so  

 Review the existing TRA model constitution, with a view to simplifying it, 
ensuring it is in plain English (with less bureaucratic jargon)

 Review the existing training offer for residents to ensure that it is fit for purpose, 
offers value for money, and widens the pool of digitally-included residents.

 Provide specialist support for TRAs in respect of financial management and 
governance to increase transparency and accountability 

 Increase the proportion of resident participation funding available to TRAs 
through additional small grants for projects 

 Arrange free full fibre broadband connections to TRA halls 
 Explore how libraries across the borough can be used as resource centres for 

TRAs for accessing IT facilities, holding meetings where TRA facilities don’t 
exist, training, etc.

Consultation Findings

20



37. The most recent consultation showed that a large majority of respondents were 
positive and supportive although there was also emphasis on ensuring TRAs should 
be inclusive and accountable in respect of  how funding allocated is spent. From the 
survey responses: 

 75% (505) strongly agreed that the council should continue to support TRAs 78% 
(521) that the council should support residents in setting up TRAs where there 
are none. 

 84% (564) strongly agreed that the council should help TRAs to be as inclusive 
and representative of their local community as possible. 

 65% (435) strongly agreed that, where there are no TRAs, funding should be 
allocated to local community organisations for the benefit of tenants and 
leaseholders

 Almost 65% (433) strongly agree that the council should revise its residents’ 
training offer.

 A number of respondents commented that the council should do more to ensure 
TRAs are accountable for how they use money and community assets. 

38. The co-design panel also recommended that the council continues to support the work 
of TRAs and  their development as community organisations by holding annual 
resident involvement events where there is no TRA to raise awareness of opportunities 
for further involvement – local level, strategic levels, pool of active residents, etc. 
These events would provide grassroots resident groups (whether TRAs or not) with 
opportunities to apply to the proposed Communities Fund and offer relevant  training 
and support services to resident groups.

39. Two in three of the respondents to the Kaizen review said that they knew about their 
TRA.  The respondents were clear in their views on what the role of their TRA should 
be with two thirds saying they thought it should be to improve their local area and half 
saying the TRA should be representing tenant views about services to the Council. 
The report also recommended that the council should review the approach and 
provision of training and support for tenants and TRAs.

Final Proposals

40. The council will continue to support TRAs as the foundation of resident participation. 
Our ambition is to have a TRA covering every council home. We will develop a joint 
plan to improve support for TRAs, developed with TRAs, setting out what the council 
and SGTO will do to:

i. Identify non-TRA areas and work proactively with tenants and residents in those 
areas to support them in establishing new or joining neighbouring TRAs where 
there is a will to do so

ii. Clarify & strengthen officer support to individual TRAs 
iii. Streamline the process for accessing TRA core funding to make it easier for 

eligible TRAs to access their grant and to review the conditions of grant to ensure 
they are proportionate  

iv. Increase funding for small grants for local projects that bring the community 
together and improve the wellbeing of people living in council homes 

v. Improve training, by undertaking a review of the existing training offer for council 
tenants and residents to ensure that it is fit for purpose, offers value for money, 
and widens the pool of digitally-included residents, including working with the 
Southwark Adult Learning Service and other local learning providers to ensure a 
coordinated training offer that maximises the benefits for tenants and residents.

21



vi. Improve information for residents and TRAs on the maintenance and 
management of their estates from the council, including on forthcoming major 
works, on individual blocks and on the performance of repairs and maintenance 
services.   

vii. Provide specialist support for TRAs in respect of financial management and 
governance to ensure  transparency and accountability 

viii. Strengthen the role for TRAs (and wider residents) in shaping major works, by 
reviewing how they are involved to identify how they can have a stronger say

ix. Improve support for TRA Halls, by reviewing how the council can best support 
TRAs to get the most out of their halls for the benefit of their communities

x. Review the existing TRA model constitution, with a view to simplifying it and 
ensuring it is written in easy to understand language and to include anonymous 
Equality & Diversity monitoring of TRA committee members across the whole 
borough 

xi. Improve guidance on safeguarding
xii. Arrange free full fibre broadband connections to TRA halls and explore what 

other support can be provided through TRAs to best enable residents to be 
digitally included   

xiii. Explore how libraries across the borough can be used as resource centres for 
TRAs for accessing IT facilities, holding meetings where TRA facilities don’t exist, 
training, etc.

41. In many areas of the borough TRAs are already working together and with other local 
community groups to improve their local area and community.  The council will work 
with TRAs to help them continue this work supporting residents led local collaborations 
and forums including between council and housing association TRAs. The council will 
work to support in ways that are helpful and benefit the local community.  

Rationale

42. Increasing the number and greater resources is not only a matter of fairness and 
opportunity, but also shows the council’s commitment to ‘providing support to tenants 
to build their capacity to be more effectively involved’. 

43. Gathering anonymised equalities and diversity data will allow the council to carry out 
analysis and identify any particular groups who are not represented so that targeted 
outreach activity can be delivered to encourage them to get involved. This will 
compliment other activities to enable the council to better know its residents and the 
review of training is another example of recognised good practice (LGA).  

44. It is important that TRAs are transparent in how funds are allocated and spent as they 
are public funds and many residents in the consultation expressed a desire for this 
information to be more widely monitored and easily accessible.

45. The above proposals are likely to result in more estates covered by a TRA which will 
lead to more empowered local communities. Residents will be able to learn from each 
other and share best practice, leading to more TRAs thriving and maximising their 
available resources for the benefit of the local community with more local projects 
being delivered by the local community for the local community

22



Local Housing Forums

Proposals consulted on

46. That the 12 Area Housing Forums (AHFs) be abolished and their function of providing 
a place to discuss area housing issues be incorporated into the newly established 
Ward Forums, designed to bring residents and local councillors together to discuss 
local issues. 

Consultation Findings

47. This was the least popular proposal in the most recent consultation. Both individuals 
and organisations expressed concerns about the proposal’s viability and that it would 
dilute the importance of housing issues. Feedback also indicated that residents feel 
the council should be more inclusive and engage with residents regardless of whether 
they have TRAs or not and to also make it easier for those who can’t attend meetings 
to have a say. The general feedback from AHF, Tenants Council (TC) and 
Homeowners Council (HOC) has been that ward forums are not the right place to 
discuss housing issues. 

48. The co-design panel recommended that the current Area Housing Forums (AHF) be 
replaced by new Housing Forums, open to all council tenants and homeowners in their 
respective area. These Forums should have a clearly defined role and a standard 
agenda developed with residents, including housing service performance and would 
provide a mechanism to highlight and escalate systemic concerns.

49. During the Kaizen/Social Engine review 57% of respondents said they knew nothing 
about Area Housing Forums. It was also highlighted that Area Housing Forums do not 
match with the housing management areas and that this adds confusion to who is 
responsible for what and that some form of re-assessment of structure to clarify the 
purpose and remit of each element would be beneficial.

Final Proposal

50. Taking into account the above, the final proposal is, not to incorporate the functions of 
AHFs into Ward Forums, instead the council will to continue to have local forums 
focused solely on council housing issues, replacing the current AHFs with five Local 
Housing Forums (LHF). Appendix 3 shows a map of these areas. LHF will:

i. Provide a local forum where tenants and residents can: 
 Promote positive & effective resident participation 
 Shape and improve the council’s housing services
 Be consulted on key council policy changes that particularly impact on people 

living in council owned homes in their area
 Receive updates on the performance and delivery of housing services 
 Access residents participation support and training
 Showcase work they are doing in their area
 Network with other active tenants and residents and local councillors 
 Elect representatives to the Southwark Tenants and Residents Forums (see 

below), and receive regular updates from them. 
ii. Be inclusive and open to all residents living in council owned, leased or freehold 

homes in their area, including council owned temporary accommodation. 
iii. Be chaired by an elected council tenant or resident leaseholder who lives in the area 

23



with chairs having a tenure of no longer than three consecutive years.       
iv. Each be supported by a named lead Councillor, a named Area Manager and a 

named resident involvement officer, with other relevant council officers and 
contractors also attending as needed to:

 Discuss potential changes to council policies, strategies and services and 
listen to residents views to help shape them

 Update on the performance and delivery of the council’s housing services 
 Address topics requested collectively by residents, listen to their feedback and 

jointly problem solve service delivery issues
v. Use a residents’ poll at the start of the year to help inform the topics that they will 

have on their agendas. 
vi. Each have a dedicated webpage to provide accessible information to residents 

about how they can get involved and enable those unable to attend meetings to find 
out what is happening in their area.

51. In addition, it is also vitally important to recognise that council homes make up over a 
quarter of Southwark.  It is therefore right that issues related to council homes are also 
considered at Ward Forums alongside other import issue for the local community, so in 
addition to the above Ward Forums will also want to dedicate some of their meetings 
to council housing issues that are of particular concern within their wards.  Where 
there are issues that Local Housing Forums feel could helpfully be discussed at a 
Ward Forum or Multi-Ward Forum meeting, they will be encouraged and supported to 
make that suggestion to the chair(s) of the relevant Ward Forums.         

Rationale

52. The final proposal addresses the concerns expressed during the consultation about 
the ward forums as places to discuss housing while at the same time introducing a 
more open an inclusive mechanism to discuss local housing issues, whereby any 
resident regardless of whether they have or not a TRA or whether they are not part the 
TRA committee can participate and also put themselves forward to be elected for the 
borough wide strategic body. They will also provide opportunities for residents without 
a TRA to be included in the resident participation structure and obtain the information 
and support to set up their own TRA. This will allow for a wider diversity of views and 
opinions to be fed back to the council. The council commits to delivering well prepared, 
timely and bespoke approaches to resident participation topics across all the new 
structures, which in turn will lead to residents having an opportunity to have meaningful 
input into service design and improvement. The LHFs will at the same time provide a 
platform for experienced local community activists to bring their local knowledge to 
bear on discussions and debates around a host of housing and housing related topics.

Southwark Wide Tenant and Homeowner Forums and Resident Working Groups 

Proposals consulted on

53. It was proposed that tenant and homeowners work together in one Tenants and 
Homeowners Forum (THF) with a total of 47 members representing each of the 23 
wards. It was also proposed that the My Southwark Home Owners Board be retained.  

Consultation Findings

54. The most recent consultation showed that

24



 71% (474) strongly agree that tenants and leaseholders should jointly hold the 
council to account

 76% (513) strongly agree that such a body should be as representative as possible 
of those who live in council homes. 

55. A number of respondents commented that tenants and leaseholders should be able to 
have separate meetings to address tenure specific issues. The general feedback from 
AHF, TC and HOC has been that tenants and leaseholders have distinct interests and 
discussing these in a joint tenure body would not work.

56. The co-design panel recommended that the council sets out reasonable expectations 
for any strategic group for tenants or homeowners such as accountability, clear 
membership, representation, code of conduct, robust governance, avoidance of 
duplication and consideration of tenure specific issues.

57. The Kaizen/Social Engine review recommended merging the Homeowners Council 
and Tenants Council. It based this recommendation on the finding that over half of 
respondents (56.7%) said they knew nothing about the Tenants Council.  Young 
people in particular felt that the formal engagement structures were not accessible to 
them.  The review concluded that having a separate Tenants Council and a 
Homeowners Council creates inefficiency and duplication as well as reinforcing a 
division between leaseholders and tenants that is unnecessary and unhelpful for 
scrutinising a single housing management service. 

Final Proposal

58. The final proposal is to replace Tenants Council, Homeowners Council and the My 
Southwark Homeowners Board with a new Tenants Forum and a Homeowners Forum 
as well as a joint Tenants & Homeowners Forum. 

i. The common purpose of these forums will be to provide a place where tenant and 
homeowner representatives will: 
 Help to shape and improve the council’s housing services and ensure residents 

can raise any concerns they have about the management of the council’s 
housing services and homes

 Be consulted by the council on key council policy changes that particularly 
impact on people living in council owned homes, including the setting of rents 
and service charges

 Advise and support the council in developing an effective approach to resident 
participation

 Receive feedback from other parts of the resident participation structure
 Receive updates on the performance and delivery of housing services 

ii. The Tenants Forum will:
 Focus on issues relevant to tenants (e.g. tenancies, rents, tenants’ service 

charges and repairs within the home, etc.) 
 Be made up of 24 elected tenant representatives
 Tenure for each of these roles will be no longer than three consecutive years.

iii. The Homeowners Forum will:
 Focus on issues relevant to homeowners (e.g. leases, homeowners’ service 

charges, the home ownership service and the homeowners improvement plan, 
etc.) 

25



 Be made up of 12 elected resident homeowners, plus up to 6 appointed resident 
homeowners who will bring experience that fills  gaps in the knowledge of the 
elected forum members (for example this could be the experience of freeholders 
or people living in street front properties)

 Have a homeowner chair and vice chair, the tenure for each of these roles will be 
no longer than three consecutive years.

i. The Joint Tenants and Homeowners Forum (THF) will:
 Focus on the issues relevant to tenants and homeowners, including the overall 

performance of housing services, fire safety and the commissioning & monitoring 
of independent tenant and resident support and advice services 

 Be made up of the chair and vice chairs of the Tenants Forum & Homeowners 
Forum  plus a number of other representatives elected from the Tenants Forum 
and Homeowners Forums

ii. All three forums will: 
 Have a forward plan set at the beginning of the council year, fine tuned via joint 

agenda planning meetings with the chairs and Cabinet Member
 Be attended by the Cabinet Member (or their deputy) and a housing director  
 Be supported by a named resident involvement officer
 Have no more than one tenant and one homeowner representative from each 

estate 

iii. The Tenants & Homeowners Forums will establish a small number of time limited 
Resident Working Groups to look in depth at key issues and make 
recommendations to the forums and the council on specific improvements that can 
be implemented. These working groups will each include representation from the 
Tenants and or Homeowners Forums as well as a majority of members recruited via 
Local Housing Forums and the Housing Online Panel who have experience of and 
interest in each topic, with the explicit aim of broadening the number and diversity of 
tenants and residents involved. These groups will normally undertake their work and 
report back recommendations in no more than six months.  These working groups 
will be attended by lead officers and where appropriate councillors and will be 
facilitated by a resident involvement officer. All existing sub groups established by 
the current Tenants Council and Homeowners Council will conclude their work by 
the time of the first meeting of the new Joint Tenants and Homeowners Forum so 
that working groups going forward can be agreed by the new forums. 

Rationale

59. These changes seek to widen participation in collective representation, strengthen the 
lines of electoral accountability, and enhance tenant and residents’ collective influence 
in council decision-making. They ensure representativeness so that all key residents’ 
interests and views are articulated at a strategic level while also ensuring the right 
level of seniority at the meetings so that agreed decisions can be acted upon promptly 
at the highest level.

60. Many respondents, including Tenants Council and Homeowners Council, highlighted 
the importance of collective participation structures that ensure the democratic 
accountability of tenant and resident representatives to a defined constituency and the 
possibility of their recall and replacement. This is also in keeping with notational policy 
developments. The principle of collective participation was embraced by government in 

26



the Social Housing Green Paper (MHCLG, 2018), the National Housing Federation’s 
new Tenants Together programme also recognises the importance of collective 
engagement and moves to establish a national representative organisation for tenants 
and residents have been announced.

61. Council tenants and homeowners live in close proximity to each other. On many of our 
existing estates council tenants, leaseholders, and private renters all live in the same 
block. As a result, there is a need for council services and communities to work 
together to ensure our services meet the needs of all our residents and that we all take 
pride and responsibility in homes and the local area. However a significant number of 
tenants and homeowners also felt that they faced some specific issues which they felt 
warranted tenant and homeowner specific bodies.

Housing Scrutiny Commission

Proposals consulted on

62. The council's Housing Scrutiny Commission has a formal legal role in scrutinising the 
delivery of the council's housing services.  The committee is primarily made up of 
councillors from all parties but can also co-opt other members.  It was proposed that 
the Chair, Deputy-Chair and one other member of the Tenants and Homeowners 
Forum would be co-opted to the Housing Scrutiny Commission, a sub-committee of 
the council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee and that they would have a right to 
fully participate in the meetings and deliberations of that Commission. Also that the 
Tenants and Residents Forum would have the right to select one subject per year for 
consideration by the Housing Scrutiny Commission.

Consultation Findings

63. Southwark TMO Committee asked that a third place on the housing scrutiny 
commission is allocated to a TMO representative.

Final Proposal

64. Tenants Forum, Homeowners Forum and STMOC will each be able to nominate one 
of their members to be co-opted onto the commission each year 

65. The Joint Tenants and Homeowners Forum will also be able to identify a topic/issue to 
be looked at in depth by the commission as part of the commission's work plan each 
year (as well as being able to recommend other topics the commission may wish to 
include in its work plan)   

Rationale

66. These proposals aim to strengthen the link between this commission and residents, so 
residents are better able to scrutinise housing services. The inclusion of a TMO 
representative ensures that TMO’s views and ideas are also fed into the housing 
scrutiny process.

Tenants and homeowners online panel 

Proposals consulted on

67. It was proposed that, alongside all of the structures, the council should endeavour to 
recruit up to 1,000 tenants and homeowners to a panel of active residents who can be 

27



invited to give their views or take part in service improvement initiatives, such as Task 
& Finish groups. The membership of the panel would be a cross section of our 
communities, reflecting the geographical, age, gender and ethnicity mix of those who 
live in council homes.

Consultation Findings

68. The most recent consultation revealed that

 74% (495) agree that it is important to offer a range of ways for people to get 
involved

 53% (357) said they would be interested in joining an on line engagement pool. 
 A few respondents commented that the balance between online and face to face 

engagement has to be right
 73% (491) selected e-mail as the way respondents would like to be kept up to date 

about decisions that affect them with choosing this option 
 The second most popular at 52% (349) was meetings
 41% (276) preferred questionnaires and surveys) 
 Young people expressed a preference for engaging on line with only 5% saying 

they would be interested in joining a young people’s panel or attending meetings.

69. The co-design panel recommended three initial pilots for developing digital 
involvement, such as major works, communication, a sounding board through emails 
which could widen considerably the number of involvement residents.

70. The Kaizen/Social Engine review recommended making more effective use of digital 
tools. It noted that this needed to be accompanied by a level of sophistication, 
engagement expertise and leadership in order to make it ‘live’ and relevant. The 
review particularly noted that young people were more likely to embrace digital 
platforms, whilst recognising the barriers that some residents have to using digital 
technology.

Final Proposal

71. That the council establishes an online panel of tenants and residents to seek wider 
views on the council’s housing services, homes and estates and how they can be 
approved.  The panel will:

i. Seek the wider views of people living in council homes on our housing services, 
homes and estates and how they can be improved

ii. Engage a representative cross section of the people who live in council homes 
iii. Be an additional and complementary way to engage with residents - supplementing 

but not replacing face to face and other forms of engagement
iv. Help to inform the work of the council, Tenants and Homeowners Forums and 

housing scrutiny, with surveys commissioned jointly by these bodies and findings 
reported back to them         

v. Use a range of online surveys, email and social media to engage residents
vi. Be supported by an officer with expertise in seeking residents’ views online 

Rationale  

72. Southwark Council recognises that not all residents are digitally included and the 
consultation feedback showed concern that greater use of IT should not exclude 

28



anyone due to lack of access to or experience of using modern technology and tools. 
The wider proposals retain a robust element of face to face meeting based 
engagement for those who have a preference for that way of interaction. At the same 
time, the proposals for digital engagement mean that a wider pool of residents will be 
able to participate and express their views, adding to the ways in which residents can 
engage with the council.

73. The residents online panel will also be a source for topic specific task and finish 
groups which will facilitate a greater residents and landlord collaboration, enabling 
issues to be probed and understood in depth. This approach will also fosters a culture 
of partnership and joint learning focusing on solutions to problems and service 
improvement, allowing adequate time for complex issues to be considered in depth 
leading to more innovative ideas, responses and interventions.

Tenant Management    

Proposals consulted on

74. The recommendation in relation to tenant management was that the Southwark Tenant 
Management Organisations Committee (STMOC) should remain in its current form 
and continue to carry out its role identifying opportunities to improve the partnership 
working between the council and TMOs and identify improvements to services in areas 
under TMO management for the benefit of residents.

Consultation Findings

75. Whilst this recommendation received only a small number of comments those received 
were all supportive. However a number of respondents made the wider point that 
tenant management is a key building block of resident participation and should be 
consistently recognised as such. A request was also made for TMOs to have a place 
on housing scrutiny alongside tenant and homeowner representatives to provide a 
tenant management perspective.   

Final Proposal

76. Southwark has a long and proud history of supporting tenant management, the council 
is committed to continuing this and to making tenant management one of the key 
building blocks of our approach to residents participation (whilst also recognising the 
distinct and spate roles of TRAs and TMOs).  as part of this commitment:

i. Southwark Tenant Management Organisations Committee (STMOC) will remain in 
its current form as part of the council’s formal residents participation structure

ii. STMOC will be able to nominate one of its members to be a co-opted member of the 
council’s Housing Scrutiny Commission, with the right to fully participate in the 
meetings and deliberations of that Commission. 

iii. STMOC will be able to nominate one of its members to be a co-opted (non voting) 
attendee of Tenants Forum and one to Homeowners Forum, with both also being 
co-opted (non voting) attendees of the joint Tenants and Homeowners Forum.   

iv. The council will work with TMOs in assisting them to review their training needs (in 
coordination with the TRA offer) 

v. The council will continue to support TMOs in extending or establish new TMOs to 
cover areas without one where residents would like to do so and it is right for them

29



Rationale

77. A significant proposition of Southwark homes are covered by a TMO. The nature of 
tenant management is that it brings is own unique issues and therefore it is important 
the experience and perspective of TMOs is represented across the council’s resident 
participation structures.    

Housing Conferences 

Proposals consulted on

78. It was proposed that the council will support Tenants and Homeowners to arrange an 
annual conference. 

Consultation Findings

79. A homeowners and a tenants conference were held during the consultation period. 
Both were well attended and there was strong support for continuing them. 
Homeowners council and attendees at the homeowners conference also expressed 
the value of a stand alone homeowners conference including for non-resident 
homeowners for who this may be their only point of face to face engagement with the 
council.    

Final Proposal

80. The council will work with the Tenants Homeowners Forums and SGTO to organise 
and deliver an annual Tenants and Resident Conference open to everyone who lives 
in a council home and will also work with the Homeowners Forum to organise an 
annual event for all council leaseholders and freeholders focussed on homeowner 
specific issues.

Rationale

81. Both Tenants Council and Homeowners Council have arranged successful large 
events in recent years. The council want to continue to support this format of 
engagement that has be shown to work well for many people.  Holding a separate 
event for homeowners will allow the council to have face to face discussion with no-
resident leaseholders whilst also having a different space to engage with the people 
who live in the council homes.     

Resident Involvement Fund (RIF)

82. Details of the current arrangements for resident involvement funding were set out in 
the previous report presented to Cabinet in June 2019. 

Proposals consulted on

83. The original proposal was for a new Resident Involvement Fund (RIF) to replace 
existing separate funds for tenants and homeowners to be calculated using the same 
formulas currently in place giving an approximate annual budget of £676k.

84. The new RIF would fund the TRA annual grants (circa £178k) and servicing of the 

30



resident involvement structure including training (circa £162k). The reminder (circa 
£364k) would be split in two halves. One half would be devolved to Ward Forums to be 
agreed by ward councillors and spent in accordance with borough-wide objectives on 
council estates and residential properties.  This would be added to the Tenants and 
Residents Social Improvements Grants (TRSIG) funding divided by ward. The other 
half of the fund would be for agreed strategic objectives and subject to decision by the 
Cabinet Member for Housing and Modernisation on advice from the Tenants and 
Homeowners Forum.  Strategic spending would be expected to deliver identifiable and 
measurable outcomes for tenants and homeowners. It would also be used to enable 
Tenants and Homeowners to arrange an annual Tenants and Homeowners 
conference.

85. It would be a cabinet member for housing management and modernisation decision, 
taking on advice from the Tenants and Homeowners Forum, to decide what funding is 
allocated to third party organisations and whether this is allocated via grants or 
contract. 

Consultation Findings

86. The most recent consultation showed that:
 
 61% (412) strongly agree that TRA grants should be allocated at local level
 67% (446) strongly agree that the council should allow applications from residents 

if there is no TRA and it is clear the activity is supported by and will benefit tenants 
and leaseholders.

 72% (484) strongly agree that councillors should work with local residents to 
determine local priorities for spending the resident involvement fund. 

87. A small number of respondents stated that councillors should not be involved in local 
decisions for this funding. A few comments were made on the theme of fairness in 
distribution of funding and accountability. A number of people commented that the 
funding application process should be simplified and training on how to complete good 
quality applications provided to residents. 

 64% (428) strongly agree that some funding should continue to be allocated 
borough-wide to delivery outcomes that benefit both tenants and leaseholders. 

 73% (491) strongly agree that some funding should continue to be used to provide 
access to independent advice services.

88. The co-design panel recommended that there should be a Communities Fund with 
clear objectives, outcomes and accountability. It also proposed that TRAs, TMOs, 
resident groups and community organisations should be eligible to bid for funds, but 
that the council should also be able to support applications from looser groups without 
a TRA or a bank account.

89. The Kaizen/Social Engine review showed that over two thirds (64%) of respondents 
said they knew nothing about the Tenants and Homeowners Funds. Respondents 
expressed a clear preference for spending to be allocated for activities which directly 
and demonstrably benefit  communities, which was not achieved by  the way funding is 
currently allocated  It was also noted that there is an over-reliance on outputs rather 
than delivering outcomes and opportunities that benefit local communities.

31



Final proposal

90. The council will establish a new Resident Participation Fund, this will replace the 
current Tenants Fund, Homeowners Fund and TRISG grants. The total funding will be 
increased from £860,000 to £900,000. This fund will need to benefit people who live in 
council homes as it will be funded by tenants and homeowners. It will fund the 
following activities:  

i. Half (£450,000) will to go to grassroots activity to fund:  
a. Core Grants for TRAs (currently £178,000): These are grants paid annually 

to all fully established TRAs covering council homes.  The amount TRAs 
receive will be unchanged. TRAs covering 240 or less tenancies will continue 
to receive £1,300, with TRAs covering more than 240 tenancies continuing to 
receive an additional £5.50 per tenancy as is currently the case. 

b. Resident Participation Small Grants (£272,000): This will provide funding 
for small grants of up to £5,000 to support projects and activates that bring 
tenants and residents together and improve their wellbeing.  These grants will 
fund projects and activities that primarily benefit people who live in council 
owned homes. Applications will be open to established and emerging TRAs 
and TMOs as well as constituted local groups that can evidence that the 
application has been developed by and for people living in council homes. 
Decisions on the grants will be made by the Cabinet Member for Housing 
Management and Modernisation based on recommendations from a panel of 
tenant and resident representatives. 

ii. Half (£450,000) will cover Southwark wide activity. Decisions on this funding will 
be made by the Cabinet Member for Housing Management and Modernisation 
based on recommendations from the Joint Tenants and Homeowners Forum, this 
will include funding for: 

a. Independent Support and Advice Services (£260,000):  This will fund 
Southwark wide independent support and advice services for council tenants 
and resident homeowners, including those provided by Southwark Group of 
Tenant Organisations as well as other advice services. These services will be 
commissioned on behalf of tenants and residents by the council based on 
priorities set by the Joint Tenants and Homeowners Forum in consultation 
with wider tenants and resident homeowners. It is anticipated that this will be 
through multi year contracts. The council will work with the Joint Tenants and 
Home Owners Forum to monitor the performance of these services.  

b. Training (£100,000), to support the active participation of tenants and 
residents in their local community, including training that support people to set 
up and run all aspects of TRAs

c. Other resident participation activities (£50,000), including meetings, 
conferences and travel and other activities that support effective resident 
participation 

d. Administration of the above grants/contracts (£40,000)

91. To provide time for the commissioning of contracts for independent support and advice 
services, the current grants for these services from the tenants and homeowners funds 
to the Southwark Group of Tenants Organisations and Citizens Advice Bureau will be 
extended for a further six months to the 31 September 2020 with funding from the new 
Resident Participation Fund.  

92. Currently the formula for TRA Core Grants requires a budget of £178,000, if more 
homes were to be covered by TRAs in future, funding for the Resident Participation 
Small Grants will need to be reduced to cover this cost. 

32



Rationale 

93. The proposal reflects the feedback from residents that more resources should be 
made available too support grass roots community projects and for greater 
transparency of how resident participation funding is used.  It also resolves a long-
standing anomaly of the current system in that all tenants and homeowners pay in, but 
around 40% are excluded from applying for funding as they do not have a TRA. The 
proposal also allows the council and resident representatives to ensure that the 
significant sums spent on borough-wide services meet residents’ needs and are value 
for money through the review, commissioning and monitoring of service providers.   

Involving people who are not council tenants, leaseholder or freeholders 

94. Resident participation also needs to take account of the needs and circumstances of 
those to whom the council is a landlord but who do not fall into the general needs 
category. This includes residents of sheltered and extra care housing and those placed 
in temporary accommodation. In addition, Southwark runs four Gypsy and Traveller 
sites and manages three supported hostels.

Temporary Accommodation (TA)

95. The council provides temporary accommodation to those who it has accepted a duty to 
house, but for who it cannot (yet) provide permanent accommodation. 

96. Unlike general needs tenants, those in TA are not secure tenants, but occupy their 
homes on the basis of non-secure tenancies or licenses.  Despite its name, temporary 
accommodation often lasts for months or years. Though TA residents do not pay into 
the resident participation fund, they receive housing management services and are 
part of their local community.

97. Council estate properties: there are around 800 TA households living in Southwark 
Council estate properties. In accordance with the TRA model constitution, as legal 
residents, those in TA are entitled to participate in their local TRA.

98. Family hostels: the council runs 17 family hostels with 349 units. Where a hostel is 
located within a TRA area, residents are entitled to take part in the life of the TRA. 
Where there is no functioning TRA, the council can arrange an annual meeting for 
residents. 

99. Private sector: of the 200+ households placed in private sector accommodation, more 
than a quarter are located in other London boroughs. The Resident Involvement team 
will support the TA management team to ensure that these residents are informed 
about service standards and their rights as a tenant and to have the opportunity to 
have their say.

Sheltered and Extra-Care Housing

100. Sheltered housing – sheltered housing is used by older or frailer residents who can 
manage a degree of independent living. Almost all the council’s 20 sheltered schemes 
now have their own TRA which is supported by sheltered housing staff. Resident 
Services will continue to work with the remaining schemes to establish TRAs.

101. Extra-care – there are only two extra-care schemes, providing accommodation with 
onsite carer support to very frail residents. One of these is located at a sheltered 
housing unit and has its own TRA. Resident Services is looking to establish a TRA at 

33



the other in conjunction with the care provider. 

102. Residents living in council owned temporary accommodation, family hostels, sheltered 
housing and extra care housing will also be able to participate in Local Housing Forum, 
Tenants and Homeowners Forums and the Residents Online Panel.  

Supported Hostels

103. The council owns two and manages a third supported hostel. The hostels are used 
primarily by single men, many of whom have been rough sleepers. Residents can 
have extensive physiological or psychological problems and turnover in hostels is high. 

104. Due to the particular needs of this client group, it is not considered feasible to establish 
TRAs in hostels. Instead, service information and the opportunity to have their say can 
be addressed through the onsite hostel staff at regular resident meetings in each 
hostel.

Gypsies and Travellers

105. Southwark’s commitment to inclusion and respect for diversity includes its Gypsy & 
Traveller population. The council owns and manages four Traveller sites with 42 
pitches. Residents are primarily families and are licensees. The fees they pay for their 
pitch and the services they receive are not part of the Housing Revenue Account. 
There are less than a dozen households living in Southwark Council homes who have 
identified to the council as Gypsy, Roma or Traveller.

106. The council is investing millions of pounds in refurbishing its Traveller sites and has a 
dedicated team that works closely with residents and the Southwark Travellers Action 
group (STAG) to enable Gypsies & Travellers to have their voices heard not only about 
the services they receive, but also wider community issues, such as consultation about 
nearby housing development or the Bakerloo line extension. 

107. Site residents were included in the resident involvement review consultation and a 
meeting was held between the chair of the Southwark Travellers Action Group (STAG) 
trustees and the Cabinet Member for Housing Management and Modernisation. The 
Travellers Service and STAG will continue to facilitate engagement on a family and 
site basis. We will also encourage closer relationships between Travellers and local 
TRAs, including opportunities to use community facilities that do not exist on sites. The 
council will continue to capture all relevant information regarding Travellers who live in 
bricks and mortar to ensure their needs are addressed and will assist their participation 
in their TRAs. 

Review 

108. A review of the new resident involvement participation structure will be undertaken 
after the first year in order to assess its effectiveness and whether any adjustments 
might be needed, with a report back to cabinet by September 2021.

Policy implications

109. Homes England took over responsibility for the regulation of social housing providers 
in January 2018. It works with social housing landlords and tenants to improve the 
standard of services for tenants and residents. It took over responsibility for the 
regulation of social housing providers and monitors their performance. This includes a 
standard on tenant involvement and empowerment. 

34



110. Local authorities also have a statutory requirement under s.105 of the Housing Act 
1985 to put in place arrangements for consulting tenants on matters of housing 
management.

111. The council’s Fairer Future Vision and the current Council Plan set the context for a 
relationship with residents based on trust, openness and transparency. The vision and 
plan describe a new relationship with citizens and customers that make more of the 
council’s community leadership role. Part of this role is encouraging others to come 
together to do more, looking to the community to work with the council to provide 
solutions to the issues we face together.

112. In September 2017 the council adopted a Social Regeneration Framework for 
‘ensuring that the places where people live, now and in the future, create new 
opportunities, promote wellbeing and reduce inequalities so people have better lives, 
in stronger communities, and achieve their potential’.

113. In 2018 the council made eight new commitments aimed at making Southwark a fairer 
place to live where all residents have the opportunity to fulfil their potential. Theme 1 is 
“A place to call home” and includes a commitment to work with tenants, residents and 
homeowner groups to find new ways to engage so that more people can have their 
say.

114. The proposals outlined in this paper also connect council housing participation with 
wider community engagement by integrating with structures replacing Community 
Councils.  

115. In this context it is important that the council clearly states its commitment to effective 
engagement between the council and residents living in council homes and ensuring 
this is fit for purpose and reaches a broad and diverse range of our residents.

Community impact statement

116. The next steps set out in this report aim to enable the council to carry out more 
effective community engagement. It is intended that this will lead to improved 
engagement with all sections of the community. This is about improving the way the 
council supports strong, active and inclusive communities that are informed and 
involved in decision making and enable us to improve public services for everyone in 
the borough.

117. The approach proposed in this report recognises the diversity of our communities, the 
importance of community capacity building and the need to provide better and wider 
opportunities for communities to participate to influence service delivery, decision 
making and policy development in ways that suit them.

118. Whilst the council doesn’t currently collect demographic data of those currently 
engaged in its consultation structures, anecdotal evidence shows that the make up is 
not representatives of our resident demographics. It is proposed that the new resident 
participation framework will routinely ask participants to voluntarily fill in demographic 
data so that going forward the council can assess how representative the mechanisms 
are and take action where they aren’t.

119. An equalities analysis has been completed addressing both the proposals outlined in 
this paper and the next stage of consultation. While both elements comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duty, it is clear that council does not hold comprehensive 

35



equalities data about all residents living in council housing. In implementing the new 
structure, the council will introduce systems for capturing equalities data so as to be 
able to authoritatively report on the success of the new structure in reaching out to all 
members of the communities.

120. In addition the Southwark Equalities and Humans Right Panel has considered at 
various stages the proposals and consultation and made comments which have been 
incorporated into the equality analysis and the recommendations found in this report.

Resource implications

121. The above resident participation framework changes can be delivered within existing 
budgets. Though no financial savings are planned, it is anticipated that productivity 
and satisfaction will increase due to more efficient use of resources. It is likely that a 
reorganisation of the resident involvement business unit staffing structure would be 
required in order to implement the above proposals. 

Consultation

122. Between 2011 and 2013 the council undertook an Independent Housing Commission 
chaired by Jan Luba QC. It produced a report which challenged the council to think 
about the future of its housing stock. The council then embarked upon a wide ranging 
public engagement exercise, with dozens of events and multiple opportunities for 
everyone in the borough to get involved and to be heard.

123. The report stated that more effort should be made to change the “provider-user” 
culture that pervaded council housing in Southwark. It added that this could be partly 
achieved by actively seeking to engage residents more with housing management and 
setting local housing standards.

124. An independent review into resident involvement undertaken by The Kaizen/Social 
Engine then followed between April and May 2017 and included a large scale outreach 
programme across the borough, coupled with an online survey, focus groups and 
stakeholder interviews were used to engage over 1,000 local tenants and 
homeowners. The review also incorporated the opinions of council officers and 
Councillors and gathered evidence and experience from a range of other housing 
providers – both local authorities and housing associations as well as an assessment 
of other research on tenant engagement. 

125. In September 2018 an independently chaired co-design panel with a majority of 
residents from a diversity of housing tenure, geography and demographics was set up. 
The panel received evidence in the form of written submissions from existing bodies, 
residents involved in current structures officers of the council, as well as papers 
prepared by the independent chair. The panel also spoke with resident representatives 
and council managers and it published its findings in January 2019 and a four week 
consultation period followed. 

126. On 23 April 2019, the housing commission of the overview and scrutiny committee 
questioned the cabinet member for housing and modernisation and the director of 
communities about the consultation process to date. 

127. Between July and October 2019 a final round of consultation took place. The 
consultation had over 1,100 responses and the feedback from that has been 
presented across this report and can be found in detail in Appendix 1. The consultation 
included targeted work and communications with specific groups including residents in 

36



temporary accommodation, Gypsy and Traveller community, Southwark Disablement 
Association, Young Advisors and the Latin American Community among others.

128. The cabinet member for housing management and modernisation and officers also 
met with representatives of the existing consultation bodies – TC, HOC, AHFs, and 
STMOC to feed in their views to the consultation and discuss the way forward.

129. The latest and final round of consultation presented the detailed proposals for the new 
resident participation framework, a questionnaire, both in printed copies and an online 
version in order to offer a chance to as many residents as possible to share their views 
on the proposals, residents feedback was captured and presented in this report. 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

130. The report recommends that cabinet note the proposals for a new framework for 
resident participation and seeks approval to implement the new framework in 2020. 

131. The resident participation framework forms part of the council’s arrangements to 
discharge its statutory obligation to consult with its secure and introductory tenants 
under Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985 (secure tenants) and similar provision in 
Section 137 of the Housing Act 1996 in respect of introductory tenants. These 
statutory provisions require the council to maintain such arrangements as it considers 
appropriate to enable tenants who are likely to be substantially affected by a matter of 
‘housing management’ to be informed of any proposals and to make their views 
known. Any representations need to be considered in accordance with those 
arrangements. ‘Housing management’ for this purpose includes the management, 
maintenance, improvement or demolition of homes and the provision of services and 
amenities (but not including matters relating to rent or charges for services). Although 
not required by statute to consult on changes to rent and other charges, the council 
has, under paragraph 6e in the conditions of tenancy with council tenants undertaken 
to consult with Tenant’s Council before seeking to make such changes.

132. There is no similar general statutory provision in relation to the council’s long 
leaseholders although principles of fairness may require consultation be carried out  in 
certain circumstances and there are specific consultation duties as to charges for 
works under Section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 which engage when 
‘qualifying works’ are undertaken; for example, major works.

133. Local housing authorities in England are also regulated as “registered providers of 
housing” by the Regulator of Social Housing under the Housing and Regeneration Act 
2008. It is a requirement that local housing authorities comply with principles and 
standards applied by the Regulator. Among the “regulatory standards” is the Tenant 
Involvement and Empowerment Standard (July 2017). The standard includes a 
requirement that registered providers ensure that tenants are given a wide range of 
opportunities to influence and be involved in the formulation of policies and strategic 
priorities; making decisions about how housing-related services are delivered, 
including the setting of service standards; scrutinising performance; managing their 
homes; and managing repair and maintenance services.

134. The report sets out the consultation that has taken place and the outcome of that 
consultation. Cabinet should note that consultation undertaken by the council must 
meet a minimum standard of fairness if it is to be considered lawful.  In order to ensure 
any consultation is fair, the law requires that consultation should happen when the 

37



proposals are still at a formative stage; sufficient information should be given to enable 
the proposal to be intelligently considered; adequate time for responses should be 
given; and decision makers must conscientiously take into account responses to 
consultation when the ultimate decision is taken. Cabinet members should carefully 
consider the consultation findings when making a decision on the recommendations.

135. In the exercise of all its functions, the council must have due regard to the public 
sector equality duty in Section 149 pf the Equality Act 2010. Specifically to have due 
regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other 
prohibited conduct, (b) to advance equality of opportunity and (c) foster good relations 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not 
share it. The relevant protected characteristics for this purpose are age; disability; 
gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation. Where any disproportionate effects are anticipated, the council 
should seek to mitigate where possible. It should also be noted that the duty is a 
continuing one and that if implemented, the impact of the new framework should be 
kept under review. Cabinet is referred to the community impact statement in this 
report. 

136. The framework recommendations include provision for  a member  from each of the 
proposed Tenants Forum, Homeowners Forum and STMOC to be co-opted to the 
Housing Scrutiny Commission. The Housing and Environmental Commission is a sub-
committee of the council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC). The council’s 
scrutiny function provides a challenge to the delivery of public services in Southwark 
and is a council committee subject to the provisions of the council’s constitution.

137. Paragraph 4 of the OSC procedure rules in the council’s constitution allow OSC and its 
sub-committees to appoint a number of people as non-voting co-optees, with the 
approval of the chair and vice chair of the OSC, who may be appointed to service for 
the full year or the duration of a specific task or review.

138. The report recommends the establishment of a new Residents Participation Fund. As 
to the making of grants from this fund, approval must be made in accordance with the 
decision making arrangements set out in the council’s constitution; approval of grants 
to voluntary organisations of over £2500 is reserved for cabinet member decision. 

139. With regards to paragraph 90.ii.a concerning the proposed procurement of external 
independent support and advice services, the council’s Contract Standing Orders 
(“CSOs”) state that, where the estimated contract value is above the applicable EU 
threshold for services, there is a requirement to comply with the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 following a publicly advertised competitive tendering process. 

Strategic Director of Finance & Governance (FC19/031)

140. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the recommendations for the 
new Resident Participation Framework.  This involves ending the existing funding 
streams for the Tenants Fund, Homeowners Fund and Tenants & Residents Social 
Improvements Grants (TRISG) and replacing them with a new Resident Participation 
Fund, as set out in the report. 

141. The proposed changes can be delivered within the existing budget, however, a 
reorganisation of the resident involvement business unit staffing structure will likely be 
required in order to implement the above proposals and a review of the framework will 
be undertaken after the first year.   

38



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Agenda and minutes of housing and 
community safety scrutiny subcommittee

160 Tooley Street 
London SE1 2QH

Everton Roberts
020 7525 7221

Link:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=381

Review of Resident Engagement - Report 
from the Housing and Community Safety 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee

160 Tooley Street 
London SE1 2QH

Stephen Douglass
020 7525 7344

Link:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=5755&Ver=4

Improving tenant and homeowner 
engagement in Southwark – a review
Carried out by Kaizen and Social Engine

160 Tooley Street 
London SE1 2QH

Stephen Douglass
020 7525 7344

Link (please copy and paste into your browser):
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s73753/Appendix%20A%20Improving%20
Tenant%20and%20Homeowner%20Engagement%20in%20Southwark%20A%20Review%
20Carried%20out%20by%20Kaizen.pdf

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Consultation Findings
Appendix 2 Implementation Timeline 
Appendix 3 Local Housing Forum Boundaries Map

39

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=381
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=5755&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s73753/Appendix%20A%20Improving%20Tenant%20and%20Homeowner%20Engagement%20in%20Southwark%20A%20Review%20Carried%20out%20by%20Kaizen.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s73753/Appendix%20A%20Improving%20Tenant%20and%20Homeowner%20Engagement%20in%20Southwark%20A%20Review%20Carried%20out%20by%20Kaizen.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s73753/Appendix%20A%20Improving%20Tenant%20and%20Homeowner%20Engagement%20in%20Southwark%20A%20Review%20Carried%20out%20by%20Kaizen.pdf


AUDIT TRAIL

Cabinet Member Councillor Kieron Williams, Housing Management And Modernisation
Lead Officer Michael Scorer, Strategic Director of Housing & Modernisation
Report Author Stephen Douglass, Director of Communities

Eva Gomez, Resident Involvement Manager
Version Final
Dated 23 January 2019
Key Decision? Yes

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
CABINET MEMBER

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member Yes Yes
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 24 January 2020

40



Item No.  

 

Classification: 

Open 

Date: 

 

20 February 2023 

Meeting Name: 

Environment and 

Community Engagement 

Scrutiny Commission  

 

Report title: 

 

Update briefing on retrofit and low carbon heating 

funding and projects for council homes 

Ward(s) or groups affected: All 

 

From: 

 

Director of Asset Management 

 

In response to the Commission’s request for an: ‘Update on social housing funding 
for retrofit and low carbon energy e.g. Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund; water-
source heat pump project (on three of our council estates with £7m in funding from 
the GLA) , and the District Heat Network,  working with Veolia, using  funding from 
the Heat Networks Investment Project (HNIP) to extend South-East London 
Combined Heat & Power (SELCHP)’. 
 

The Director of Asset Management asks the Commission to note the following: 
 

1. Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) 
 
Southwark put in a bid in November 2022. The bid (for £3.5m+) focused on deep 
retrofit to 320+ street properties in the Nunhead and Peckham area, aligning with a 
scheduled major works scheme. 
 
Installing retrofit measures is less complicated in street properties than to tall 
buildings and our major works contractor working in the area has all the necessary 
accreditations and certifications to carry out the work. It is therefore a good fit for our 
first deep retrofit project. 

We were expecting to hear if our bid has been successful in January 2023 but the 
government's timetable has slipped and successful bidders will be informed at the 
'end of February/beginning of March'. 

 

2. ECO funding 

In addition to the SHDF, we are looking to secure Energy Companies Obligation 
(ECO4) funding to carry out insulation works across the borough. Assessments are 
currently being carried out and a communications plan for residents is being put 
together. We are hoping that a programme of work will start by April 2023. 

 

3. Asset Management Plan 

As regards an overall strategy, a Plan detailing proposals for investment in our 
council homes over the next five years is well into development. It will set out our 

41
Agenda Item 8



plans to strive for a Net Zero standard by 2030, with a commitment to achieve an 
EPC rating of 'C' across the housing stock as a minimum goal. 

We will be starting a resident engagement exercise shortly and we will publish ways 
in which our residents can get involved. How the Council invests in homes to make 
them more energy efficient and reduce carbon will be a major strand of this 
engagement. 

 

4. Water-source heat pump project (Consort, Newington, Wyndham) 
 
This project successfully reached “practical completion” in September 2022, 
meaning all material elements of the project are now complete. The project is now 
within a 12 month ‘Defects Liability Period’ where the contractor is responsible for 
repairing/replacing if any defects arise. Cllrs Williams and Merrill attended a joint site 
visit to the Newington estate heat pump project in November 2022, which was also 
attended by Deputy Mayor for London (Shirley Rodrigues), the contractors and the 
residents.  
 
 

5. SELCHP District Heat Network expansion project (working with Veolia) 
 
In June 2013, the council entered a 20 year “Heat Supply Agreement” with Veolia 
Environmental Services Southwark Limited to provide heat from SELCHP to a 
number of council boiler houses in Bermondsey and Rotherhithe, which in turn 
provide heat to 2,650 council homes. 
 
This has proven to be a success in terms of heat cost, carbon reduction and 
reliability so in 2019-20 a feasibility study was undertaken to explore expanding the 
network towards the Old Kent Road and Peckham areas.   
 
With a positive feasibility result, in 2021, the Council worked with Veolia to secure 
government grants for commercialisation and construction activities. Veolia ended up 
with a combination of two government grants (Heat Network Investment Project 
(HNIP) and Green Heat Network Fund Transition Scheme (GHNF-TS)).   
 
Since early 2022 we have been working on the following activities concurrently 
(which together would be classed as “commercialisation” – i.e. developing the project 
to a sufficient level of detail to enable it to progressed): 
  

 route ground scanning (detecting existing utilities) 

 boiler house surveys and connection works design 

 boiler house heat metering and load testing 

 underground mains detailed design (pipe sizing, hydraulic modelling, pumping 
strategy) 

 liaison with council parks, property and highways departments 

 liaison with TFL, Network Rail, Rail for London and statutory authorities 

 progression of a Local Development Order (LDO) to simplify planning for this 
major infrastructure project 

 arboricultural surveys 

42



 archaeological surveys 

 working with the council’s legal department on a draft easement 

 working with legal advisors regarding the changes that would be needed to the 
existing ‘Heat Supply Agreement’ 

 quantity surveying, cost estimates and financial modelling 

 resident consultation meetings (online and in person) 
 

Not all of the above elements are complete, but all are well underway. The current 
intention is to complete the commercialisation activities by summer 2023 and take a 
paper to cabinet in autumn 2023 to seek approval to vary the contract to commission 
the network expansion to be built.  
 

43



Item No.  

9 

Classification: 

Open 

Date: 

 

20 February 2023 

Meeting Name: 

Environment and 

Community Engagement 

Scrutiny Commission  

 

Report title: 

 

Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency and 

Sustainable Development - portfolio 

Ward(s) or groups affected: All 

 

From: 

 

Julie Timbrell, Project Manager, scrutiny  

 

 

 

Cllr Dennis leads the council’s work on tackling the Climate Emergency, continuing 

to improve the borough’s environment and our contribution to a greener city and a 

greener planet. She works with Cabinet Members across portfolios to champion 

sustainability, green energy and continue reducing the borough’s carbon emissions. 

Cllr Dennis will facilitate suitable, sustainable, development in partnership with local 

residents and businesses, which delivers new homes, jobs and infrastructure that 

benefits local communities. She will ensure that planning and development also 

improves access to quality local services for Southwark residents.  

Cllr Dennis will be responsible for delivering our commitment to: 

 launch a Land Commission to identify how more land in Southwark can be 

freed up for public good 

 halve the council's carbon emissions again by 2026 

 launch Southwark Green Finance 

 stronger planning rules to make sure all new developments meet high green 

standards 

 streamline planning applications for new and retrofit projects that meet high 

green standards    

 build on the work of the Southwark Climate Change Citizen Jury  

 use our planning powers to robustly require new social rent homes  

 back local people to establish Community Land Trusts, housing cooperatives 

and partnerships  

 establish a free green homes advice service for homeowners to help you 

make your home greener and lower carbon 

 streamline planning applications to green your home  

44
Agenda Item 9



 create a ‘retrofit learning network’ to bring together experts to share 

information on the potential costs, available discounts and carbon savings 

from making your homes more environmentally friendly 

 Deliver brand new parks at Canada Water and off the Old Kent Road 

Cllr Dennis will have wider responsibility for: 

 reducing carbon emissions and promoting climate justice 

 green energy  

 ensuring development in Southwark:  

o delivers for the whole community 

o meets low carbon and net-zero ambitions 

o increases the supply of new genuinely affordable homes 

o creates economic growth that works for all Southwark residents  

o improves biodiversity and enhances the public realm 

o meets the social infrastructure needs of the population, including the 

needs for education, health and community facilities  

 building control, planning policy and performance 

 Area Action Plans, including Old Kent Road and Canada Water 

 major infrastructure projects, including the Bakerloo Line Extension  

 Strategic Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 payments 

 council owned commercial properties and commercial assets   

 

45



 

Environment and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission   
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022-23 
 

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 
 

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Julie Timbrell Tel: 020 7525 0514 

 

 

Name No of 
copies 

Name No of 
copies 

 
 
 
 

  
Julie Timbrell, Scrutiny Team SPARES 
 
External 

 
 
 

 
10 
 
 
 
 

 
Electronic Copy 
 
Members 
 
Councillors:  
 
Councillor Margy Newens (Chair) 
Councillor Graham Neale (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Ketzia Harper 
Councillor Emily Hickson 
Councillor Reggie Popoola 
Councillor Sarah King 
Councillor David Watson 
 
Coopted member: 
 
 
 
Reserves Members 
 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Rachel Bentley 
Councillor Kimberly McIntosh 
Councillor Natasha Ennin 
Councillor Gavin Edwards 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Adam Hood 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total: 10 
 
Dated: May 2021 

 

 
 
 

 


	Agenda
	5 We Walworth
	7 Resident Participation Framework
	Southwark Resident Participation Framework cabinet Feb 2020

	8 Review: Financing and resourcing the Climate Emergency plan - officer briefing
	9 Interview: Cabinet member Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development
	 

